MISC. 140-B-30M-7-42 (WFC Letterhesd) ‘ /

Personsl Mey 12, 1943.

Dear Wr. Secretary:

In my letter of May Jrd, I sent you my persconal views on some of the
general aspects of the organization which you are developing for the sale of
government securities during the war, Now, you have asked for more specific sug-
gostions snd I have jotted down my tentative idess. Before doing so, however, I

thought 1t helpful to take & quick look at the figures elresdy aveilable showing
the results of the Second War Losn.

The most striking figure is the total sale of $12¢ billion to non-bank
investors. That is §23 billion above the "perfect score®™ estimuted in the memoran-
dum on the "Sources of Funds for Federal Borrowing im 1943.® A rough comparison of
estimates and resulis is ss follows:

Results

2e4,
1.2

5.
6
§12.5 billien

Particularly important in the makeup of ihese resulis ha2 been the late
spurt in sales of Series E bonds to a total of about §1f billion. ALl of these
figures have to be locked &% wery carefully, however, and checked as later data be-
comes uvailible, so that we shall not be misled by appearances, The Series E fig-
ures have some element of padding in them, in thut sales for the Tirst week of May,
as well as for the full month of April are included; and we must also watch the
June~July redemptions to see whether thera is an abtnormal relurn flow of sales made
under high pressure. The figures of total sales to individumls, psrtnerships, ste.,
include e certain smount of speculative buying - riding the pattern of rates it migh
be called - which eventually will swell bank holdings., The purchases of insurance
compenies and savings banks were over $1} billiom above the estimates, largely be-
ceuse these institutions sold substentisl amcunts of older issuss of government
securities (and not all short~term by any means) to commercisl banks prior ito and
during the April drive, thus increasing the smount of funds avallable to pay for
subseriptions to the new issues. In sddition, ss the success of the drive became
apparent and talk of postponement of the next loan until Beptember or October was
heard, some anticipatory purchases by insurance companies wers arranged, Nor should
we treat gross sales of Tax Hotes, Series C, sz net investment in government securi-
ties - that and & certain amount of speculstive buying of other issues will deflate
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somewhat the flgures of sales to "other corporations and associations,® All in all,
a8 good as the results are, I think we shall find that too many securities are atill
going directly or indirectly to the commereial benks, Commerclal bank holdings of
government securities during the first four memnths of 1943 (ineluding the §2 billiom
of 2% bonds paid for on May 10th) probubly increased as much ss $10 billion, und they
are only ®supposed” to incresse §12 billion during the whole year if we are to turn in
& 100% performance according to the estimates.

This leads ne to repeat what I have sald before ~ that we cannot sssume we
heve licked this job. We need tc tighten up our orgenization and improve our perform-
ance, I start with the recommendation that the two sales organizetions which were
loosely welded together for the April drive bLe made into one organizetion - the Wer
Finance Committee - 2nd that the War Savings Staff =znd the Victory Fund Committees now
be eliminated end their names dropped. The April drive served tc introduce the name
¥ar Finsnce Commities, while retaining in subordinste position the two older nemes Var
Savings Staff end Viectory Fund Committee. The transition to one orgenizstion und one
name should now be completed.

At the head of this single orgenization, of course, should be ihe National
Director of Sales, responsible to you end to the Under Secretery and, w#ith your full
backing, in charge of all personnel &«nd the direetion of &ll work at nationsl hesd-
quarters. There should be no guestion of his complete authority, and no sutonomous
individusl or groups running particular parts of tie show, under his merely nominal
command.

The single fleld erpniuti up by Federsl Reserve Districts
with the Preaidents ol the PFeders danke of the War Finance Com-—
mittess of thelr respective dh t man cbtainable &8s Director of
Sales for the district. ( g atricted in his eholce of dis-
trict Director of Sales.) ‘don of previously existing Wer Savingzs
Staff and Victory Pund xought into the district War Finsnce Com-
mittees as 2 tactiocsl ys nhoaldhouu'ntomtho individ-
uality of the two working ; e Chairmen of the War Finence Commlittee snd
his Sales Director should hxve futhority to set up snd develop their sales or-
ganization without bedng use this men or that method beeause of pre-existin
situstions or commections,

Communication between national headguarters at Washington znd the district
headguarters should be entirely through the district Chairmen snd his distriect Sales
Director - there should be no separate groups at national hesdguarters desling directly
with separate groups in the field; that way lies disorganisatiom.

The district orgenizstion I envisage would have two main divisions, one to
promote payroll ssvings end one to work on pericdie drives. There would necessarily be
some coordination of the work of these two divisions and they would be serviced by the
same administrative end publicity staffs, speskers bureaus, etc., but their work would
largely be separated., Payroll savings is the backbone of a continuing thrift snd ine
vestment campalgn and it is the only importent thing (stampe zre a minor item) which
should be carried on continuously. Speciel events of all kinds should be reserved for
the periodic drives. Nelther the sules organisation, nor the public can be whipped wp
to drive piteh continuously end their enthusissm snd receptivensss should not be dulled
by constent minor drives.

In order to aid the selling organisation in achieving its main objective of
the lurgest possible smount of investment (not speculative) sales to non-bsnk investors
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and to focus public atteation on this aspect of the program, I think I woulds

1, Pirect the periodie drives solely at non-bank investors
and aim at having them 5 or 6 months apert. Intervening
fineneing could then be done with the benk, The amownt
of bank buying fundementally will be controlled by their
reserve posltion, and we have now demonstrated that their
reserve position may be brought under contrel without ine
terfering with the succeas of Treasury {inancing.

2+ Reduce the line of goods we sell during drives probably to
the Series E bond, the Series C Tax Note, a long note or an
intermediste bond, snd the long 2% bond (which should be
made svellable in & $100 denominztion). The Series E bond
end the Series ¢ Tax Note would be available contimmously, of
course, but presumebly the sales would be stepped up during
drives.

3. Provide a partial payment plen for market issues sc thst small
investors can anticipete future income over & reasonable period
of time and so that institutional stors can adjust their
purchases to the regulsr accumulatiol of their funds between
drives.

Pinally, I beliewe that in We a should sget high gosls instead of
low goals for our caspalgns. Mo n by $5 billien is exhilirating,
bntitaommoadynnl end up by confusing us. After

\ . g during the April drive if its
sales were to carry us gt least \m u It would be better to snnounce such
& gosl, and, if we fall \to make i\ quipry and the selling organization will

effort and should stimuladg Treas ptncing of the anti-inflation kind, If
®honost" nstional gosls n ppwever, it will be more than ever necessary o re-
member that district guotas Latistical guesses und that selss in relation to

quotas are only a very at- meagure of the effectiveness of the several dis-
trict sales corganizations,

I have not discussed this letter, nor my earlisr letter of May 3rd, with
anyone. They sre therefore purely personsl expressions of views.

Yours sincerely,

The Honorable Henry Morgenthau, Jr.,

ASsR
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